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          1  COMMITTEE ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

          2                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: My name is James

          3  Sanders, Jr., and I'm the Chair of the Committee of

          4  Economic Development for the City of New York.

          5                 Today we will hear testimony about

          6  the application to create an empire zone in

          7  Chinatown and the Lower East Side.

          8                 Empire zones are designated by the

          9  state to foster economic growth in impoverished

         10  areas with high unemployment rates.

         11                 Today there are 66 empire zones

         12  throughout the State, ten of them are in New York

         13  City. In June, the Governor announced that the State

         14  would accept applications for six new empire zones.

         15                 New York City's submission will

         16  complete the application from dozens of localities

         17  throughout the state. The deadline for submission is

         18  August the 30th, as submitted by the Governor.

         19                 The Department of Small Business

         20  Services has been working intensively to prepare the

         21  City's application.

         22                 The two-month time line that was

         23  allowed for the application process in this round is

         24  much shorter than the eight-month period that has

         25  been granted in recent rounds.
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          2                 I trust that DSBS has prepared the

          3  strongest application possible within this time

          4  line.

          5                 The application process for empire

          6  zone is very competitive. Localities find these

          7  zones very attractive because the companies in

          8  designated zones receive tax benefits and low-cost

          9  energy when they hire more workers or make capital

         10  investment in their company.

         11                 The State incentives don't cost the

         12  localities anything and can provide significant

         13  savings to small businesses that make investments

         14  and grow.

         15                 If New York City is successful in its

         16  bid to designate an empire zone in Chinatown and the

         17  Lower East Side, we will gain a potent economic tool

         18  to bolster this culturally rich and economically

         19  diverse, but struggling, commercial hub.

         20                 Some areas adjacent to the proposed

         21  empire zones are not included in the zone but really

         22  should be part of it.

         23                 My colleagues and I would have

         24  preferred to include these areas in the application

         25  itself.
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          2                 It is our understanding that these

          3  zone boundaries can be amended annually.

          4                 We expect to see the boundaries of

          5  the empire zone expanded as soon as possible.

          6                 We will also vote today on two

          7  resolutions that I have introduced, calling on the

          8  democratic and republican conventions to be held in

          9  New York City in 2004.

         10                 These conventions can provide a boost

         11  for our City's economy and they would help promote

         12  the City as a safe and desirable location to host

         13  conventions.

         14                 I encourage my colleagues on the

         15  Committee to support these two resolutions.

         16                 Let me stop long enough to question:

         17  Is there any testimony on the conventions of the

         18  Republican National Convention and the Democratic

         19  National Convention?

         20                 I will wait until a quorum is reached

         21  before we have a vote on that issue.

         22                 I again want to thank everybody for

         23  being here today, and we will, in a moment or two,

         24  hear some testimony.

         25                 We're going to start calling people
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          2  to testify about the empire development zone.

          3                 MS. REID: The first witness is

          4  Commissioner Walsh of the Department of Business

          5  Services.

          6                 Is Christopher Kui here?

          7                 MR. KUI: Yes.

          8                 MS. REID: Okay, we will start with

          9  you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Good morning,

         11  sir.

         12                 MR. KUI: Good morning. Good morning,

         13  and thank you, Chairman Sanders, and members of the

         14  Economic Development Committee for the opportunity

         15  to testify before you in support of Intro. 247,

         16  authorizing the designation of a Chinatown, Lower

         17  East Side Empire Zone.

         18                 My name is Christopher Kui, and I'm

         19  the Executive Director of Asian Americans for

         20  Equality, and also Chairman of Renaissance Economic

         21  Development Corporation.

         22                 These two organizations have

         23  providing jobs, small business assistance and

         24  affordable housing for residents in Chinatown in the

         25  Lower East Side area for over 28 years.
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          2                 Today, as we approach the one-year

          3  anniversary of the September 11th attacks, we

          4  continue to assess the impact of those terrible acts

          5  on the Downtown communities that were most affected.

          6                 While the cost in human lives and

          7  physical destruction at Ground Zero cannot be

          8  overstated, the attacks have also had a long-lasting

          9  effect on the lives of residents in Chinatown and

         10  the Lower East Side, with thousands of workers still

         11  unemployed.

         12                 In the aftermath of September 11th,

         13  we have worked in a number of critical ways to

         14  respond to the immediate need for technical

         15  assistance and working capital for small businesses

         16  in Chinatown and the Lower East Side. Because of

         17  cultural, linguistic and economic isolation, both

         18  communities suffered disproportionately from the

         19  economic dislocation of the disaster. The distress

         20  continues today with the area still facing a

         21  significant decline in business activity with a

         22  major drop off in purchases, visits by tourists, and

         23  spending by workers. The community also continues to

         24  experience difficulty in accessing financial

         25  assistance from government and other public and
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          2  private sources.

          3                 Especially for immigrant-owned small

          4  businesses small businesses, fear of any scrutiny by

          5  government agencies also poses an enormous barrier.

          6                 While the need continues to be

          7  immediate, recovery and the need for ongoing

          8  financial and technical support will extend well

          9  into the future, if our communities are to thrive.

         10                 As we are now almost a year from the

         11  point of the disaster, we must look at long-term

         12  economic recovery by utilizing incentive tolls such

         13  as the Empire Zone Program to assist the area

         14  businesses to create the much-needed employment

         15  opportunities for local residents.

         16                 We strongly believe that a

         17  Chinatown/Lower East Side empire zone designation

         18  will help strengthen existing business, encourage

         19  increased capital investment and job growth, and

         20  attract new businesses into the community.

         21                 In conclusion, I urge the Committee

         22  and the entire City Council to support the creation

         23  of the Chinatown/Lower East Side Empire Zone by

         24  voting affirmatively for Intro. 247. Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Thank you, sir.
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          2                 There have been some questions raised

          3  over some of the activities of Asian-Americans for

          4  Equality, questions over fairness and treatment,

          5  and, in fact, you and I have had some conversation

          6  over this.

          7                 Without going into these questions

          8  point by point, and we have spent a certain amount

          9  of time trying to research this, what do you think

         10  are the issues that we should be concerned about, if

         11  any, about this economic development zone and your

         12  organization's participation in it, sir?

         13                 MR. KUI: I think the organization has

         14  been actively working in the community, I mean, for

         15  the past 28 years, and we have a stellar record in

         16  terms of job creation, helping small businesses in

         17  the community, you know, to get what is technical

         18  assistance or like, you know, access to capital, as

         19  well as affordable housing. I mean, our track record

         20  in terms of like affordable housing's example, you

         21  know, we have built close to 300 units of housing,

         22  and we have always very much affirmatively market

         23  the units to all the residents in the area, I mean

         24  in terms of even our racial breakdown. Because, you

         25  know, Chinatown, Lower East Side is a very
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          2  multi-ethnic, multi-racial community, and also, you

          3  know, you have an influx of immigrants that, you

          4  know, are rapidly changing, the community, and, so,

          5  it is our commitment and also our track record that

          6  we reach out to everybody.

          7                 So, like, for example, our, you know,

          8  our housing, I have, you know, a rapport where like,

          9  I mean our tenants is a very mixed tenancy, and also

         10  in terms of economic development, and one of the

         11  reasons why we, about ten years ago, we set up

         12  another organization called Renaissance Economic

         13  Development, is to really to work beyond the

         14  traditional ethnic bound, so, you know, that's why

         15  the Renaissance Economic Development Corporation

         16  have given out loans to, you know, whether Asian,

         17  Hispanic, African-American businesses, you know.

         18  And, again, our track record speaks for itself. And

         19  those are some of the challenges, I mean really

         20  working with everybody. And, so, again, in terms of

         21  I think the Empire Zone, I mean one of their

         22  challenges is going to be really making the program

         23  known to the small business folks.

         24                 It's a complicated process of getting

         25  credit. I'm sure there's a lot of paperwork, even
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          2  though many businesses that might qualify to receive

          3  the benefit the designations made, is that they're

          4  going to have difficulties of really accessing the

          5  funding.

          6                 So, I think those are some of the --

          7  I can see the challenges that we need to be aware

          8  of.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: A question from

         10  Council Member Clarke.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Good morning.

         12                 MR. KUI: Good morning.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: And thank you

         14  so much for your testimony here this morning,

         15  recognizing the dynamic of the Chinatown Lower East

         16  Side area, and having done some community-based

         17  economic development myself, I know that there are

         18  challenges when it comes to small business,

         19  technical assistance, the ability to get our small

         20  businesses to recognize what some have called

         21  standard business practices, and then fitting that

         22  mode or establishing that mode so as to access the

         23  types of incentives that make a zone work.

         24                 Do you feel that we're up to the

         25  task, that we're at the point where this zone can be
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          2  effective once implemented?

          3                 MR. KUI: I think definitely. I think

          4  that's why, you know, within the community right now

          5  there's tremendous optimism and then also enthusiasm

          6  for the program, because I think the impact of 9/11

          7  just really has impacted the community so much. And

          8  then also I think that because of the 9/11, many of

          9  the people who are like, what is it, immigrants not

         10  having great knowledge about how the system works,

         11  or that it's a cultural aversion to what it said, or

         12  even getting assistance from government, people no

         13  longer feel that they really need that help, and I

         14  think that the empire zone really provide a kind of

         15  incentive, I think that, I mean, for the community.

         16                 I think also, I think that we can't

         17  just rely on the zone itself. I think a designation

         18  will provide the environment and then also some

         19  incentive programs, but I think we also have to be

         20  able to work with, you know, the local business,

         21  other community organizations, other leaders, so

         22  then we could really make that program, integrate

         23  our program into people's daily way of doing

         24  business.

         25                 So, we have done that, for example,
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          2  you know, with the Renaissance Economic Development

          3  Corporation. I mean, instead of only having SBA give

          4  direct loans, we have actually worked with SBA to

          5  lend us the money and then in terms we underwrite it

          6  very differently from the traditional SBA standard,

          7  so they allow the immigrant or minority or

          8  woman-owned businesses to be able to access the

          9  funds. And even though sometimes very often we take

         10  the risk of doing it, so, you know, there are

         11  defaults, for example. But, again, our underwriting

         12  standard is very different because we know the

         13  community, we know, for example, a woman-owned

         14  business, a minority-owned business, maybe do things

         15  a little different from the traditional underwriting

         16  criteria. And, so, we've done that very successfully

         17  and we intend to integrate that kind of approach to

         18  the empire zone.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Now, we,

         20  throughout the City of New York, recognize a

         21  significant decline in manufacturing. And when one

         22  thinks of the Lower East Side, thinks of Chinatown,

         23  we know that that has been a significant part of the

         24  economy.

         25                 That area in particular serves as
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          2  almost an economic engine where manufacturing is

          3  concerned. Could you give us some insight into how

          4  you feel the empire zone may be able to assist in

          5  underpinning that industry?

          6                 MR. KUI: Yes. No, definitely, I think

          7  that's one of the challenges, in terms of like

          8  creating jobs opportunities for the residents. I

          9  think the garment industry, for example, I mean why

         10  you stated that is one of the job engine provider,

         11  and I think that one of the main challenge of the

         12  industry, and also a lot of the light manufacturing,

         13  like the printing industry and other restaurant

         14  suppliers, really the availability of affordable

         15  space, for example, and also a commitment of a

         16  longer term lease, and because of the gentrification

         17  that's going on in Chinatown, the Lower East Side, a

         18  lot of these like space that normally are set aside

         19  for manufacturing and commercial use are being

         20  converted into luxury condominiums, and I think also

         21  when they are available, a lot of the callers get,

         22  like, for example, real estate increases every year

         23  get passed along to those small businesses.

         24                 So, I think the empire zone would

         25  really be able to put a break on some of that. And
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          2  then, like, example, in terms of exemption, the

          3  increase in real estate tax, so then it will give

          4  enough of a base for a lot of these small

          5  businesses, you know, the landlord trying to pass

          6  along some of those costs - no, you know, because

          7  you're getting a rebate.

          8                 And I think also by focusing, you

          9  know, on more the manufacturing job base incentive

         10  that helps actually stabilize the community, to stop

         11  that conversion.

         12                 So, I think overall it's a positive

         13  for the manufacturing industry. I kind of see it

         14  like it will be allowed to have incubators set up,

         15  for example, because I know like some of the

         16  industry groups, for example, the garment industry

         17  and then the union is talking about once the empire

         18  zone gets approved, that they like to really build

         19  models of incubator for manufacturers and light

         20  manufacturers, similar to the Greenpoint

         21  Manufacturing, you know, alternatization (phonetic)

         22  that they've done in Brooklyn very successfully, so

         23  I think that's going to really give the momentum.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Thank you very
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          2  much, Council member.

          3                 I have some questions that have to do

          4  with bad business practices, and you may want to go

          5  into that a little bit more, sir, on there have been

          6  charges raised about bad business practices. I will

          7  give you the opportunity now to speak of this issue.

          8                 MR. KUI: Maybe you could be a little

          9  more specific a little bit.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Absolutely. I'll

         11  tell you what, I will let the next person testify,

         12  and I will --

         13                 MR. KUI: Because, certainly, as an

         14  organization we have always very affirmatively, you

         15  know, I mean followed all the rules and regulations,

         16  so I mean it's our belief and we do that. And,

         17  again, our track record speaks for itself.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: I may take the

         19  liberty of calling you back to speak after we hear

         20  from the next person testifying. Is there any final

         21  statement that you want to make at this point, sir?

         22                 MR. KUI: No. I think my speech and

         23  also the questioning speaks for itself. Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Thank you very

         25  much.
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          2                 The next person we will hear testify

          3  is Council Member Margarita Lopez.

          4                 Council Member Lopez. It's a pleasure

          5  to see you on that side of the table, Council

          6  member.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: By all means.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: My name is

         10  Margarita Lopez. I am also the Council Member of

         11  District 2.

         12                 This is the first time in my life in

         13  New York City that I'm testifying at a City Council

         14  meeting. I have never done it, not even when I was

         15  an activist. I always have functioned in this place

         16  as a person who organized the community, came down,

         17  but never spoke on the record, and this will be the

         18  first time that I do that.

         19                 I feel that it's critical for me to

         20  do that in this situation, because what we're

         21  talking about in this proposal includes a critical

         22  piece of land that has been in a struggle of our

         23  community for 30 years, and that piece of land is

         24  called urban renewal site.

         25                 At this moment that piece of land is
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          2  empty, and it's a piece of land that can produce an

          3  enormous amount of affordable housing. The struggle

          4  behind that piece of land had to do with housing

          5  that was dilapidated, occupied by African-Americans,

          6  Latinos, and some Jewish immigrants of poor

          7  descents, at the time that those houses were there.

          8                 When the area was declared an urban

          9  renewal site, every one who lived there at the time

         10  was promised that they can return and that they will

         11  be back when the affordable housing will be built.

         12                 To this day that affordable housing

         13  has not been built, and continuing not to be built.

         14  And the reason why it has not been built is because

         15  there was an attempt to build luxury housing in

         16  there instead. And the community therefore has to

         17  organize to stop the process of building luxury

         18  housing.

         19                 Lawsuits have to be filed, and the

         20  organizing that has taken place for 30 years has

         21  been tremendous, to make sure that the piece of land

         22  doesn't go for anything else than affordable

         23  housing.

         24                 Our community has been willing to

         25  allow affordable housing to be built there with
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          2  business, commercial retail at the bottom, but that

          3  proposal has not been accepted.

          4                 To this day our community continues

          5  to agree to want retail spacing there, but we have

          6  never got a commitment that is clearcut that that

          7  land will be used in that fashion.

          8                 Today we have a proposal that

          9  includes that line and that proposal has made me

         10  extremely nervous.

         11                 I support the proposal for economic

         12  development and economic recovery for the area that

         13  is affecting Chinatown and for some of the areas

         14  that have been included that are part of the

         15  African-American and Latino community in the area

         16  where I am the Council member.

         17                 The lines are short. The lines were

         18  not expanded enough to include the real community

         19  that has been affected by this.

         20                 I want the Council to take in

         21  consideration that Delancey Street, that piece of it

         22  has been included, has suffered the devastation of

         23  the construction of the Williamsburg Bridge for 15

         24  years. The businesses that were there for those 15

         25  years were Latinos and African-American businesses
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          2  that have been disseminated by the devastation of

          3  the Williamsburg Bridge construction.

          4                 When we're beginning to see light

          5  because that construction is finishing, September 11

          6  come, and kick us deep and hard.

          7                 Now we have an opportunity coming

          8  from the Mayor's office and from the Governor's

          9  office to benefit all communities, but the proposal

         10  that is in the table is not benefitting all the

         11  communities. The proposal that is in the table is

         12  questionable in the sense that doesn't clarify what

         13  the land for the urban renewal side is going to be

         14  dedicated for.

         15                 Under the whole jurisdiction is the

         16  urban renewal said land, is in the jurisdiction of

         17  the DDC or is in the jurisdiction of something else,

         18  that this proposal is going to make that piece of

         19  land being in the hands of the corporation that

         20  later on is going to decide what is going to be

         21  built there and affordable housing is not part of

         22  the equation. And I am running the risk in here to

         23  allow this proposal to go through, and destroy the

         24  struggle of 30 years of that community by approving

         25  this proposal, just by ignorance, or I should raise
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          2  my voice right now and warn the Council that we

          3  should not pass this piece of legislation, unless in

          4  the language that is proposed to us is clearly and

          5  stated that the land that is empty right now, that

          6  they needed as part of this proposal, because by law

          7  they need certain amount of empty land in this

          8  proposal, that in the proposal that they have that

          9  that empty land will be no questions asked dedicated

         10  for affordable housing and commercial development;

         11  can they do that in this proposal? And if they

         12  cannot do that, why not?

         13                 If they can do that, we can resolve a

         14  problem of this proposal. And that is clearly in

         15  there that affordable housing will be producing that

         16  site, and we no longer have to be afraid that the

         17  forces that don't want affordable houses in there

         18  being produced lost this battle, finally, and the

         19  community won what was promised to them.

         20                 The other problem that I have with

         21  the proposal is the boundaries that were proposed.

         22                 The boundaries did not include

         23  communities of African-American descent, and

         24  communities of Latino descent. Why not? They are

         25  business people, too, and they are being hurt too.
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          2  And in the process that this took place, the Latino

          3  community was not invited to discuss this, the

          4  African-American was not invited to discuss this. In

          5  the meetings where this was discussed we were

          6  literally excluded. Community Board 3 was not

          7  included. Community Board 3 was not notified of this

          8  proposal. The majority of this district is in

          9  Community Board 3, not Community Board 2.

         10                 The members of our community were

         11  ignorant of all this. Why? Why? Why not to reach out

         12  to us? And in conclusion I wonder why I was not

         13  briefed on this before I have to get to this point.

         14                 I would have been glad to have

         15  sponsored this bill. I would have been glad to be

         16  the one who sits there pushing for this bill, and

         17  here I am being put in a situation like Solomon, cut

         18  the baby in two, Margarita.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Even as I allow

         20  you to regroup, let us say that you're very, very

         21  telling comments on this proposal have certainly

         22  weighed in.

         23                 This Committee is especially

         24  sensitive to making sure that all of New York City

         25  benefits from the rebirth of New York City and not
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          2  simply some one segment or two segment of a

          3  community, but all of the City, the outer boroughs.

          4  The diversity of New York City must be reflected in

          5  everything that we do and build, because this is

          6  indeed New York City.

          7                 There are questions I have also on

          8  lines and things of this nature. I believe that

          9  we're going to hear from the Commissioner of the DBS

         10  in a moment or two and I will save my questions

         11  about what can be built here, whether it's

         12  affordable, whether it is lines, I want to hear from

         13  the Commissioner. So, I will hold my response, but

         14  let me assure you and assure everyone in here, I

         15  have certain concerns on this matter also.

         16                 I balance that with the concept that

         17  whatever we can do to aid Chinatown and the Lower

         18  East Side we must do as soon as possible without

         19  crippling or hurting any other part of this City.

         20                 I interrupted you. I will give you

         21  another moment to conclude before I call the

         22  Commissioner.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I want the

         24  Committee to ask the Commissioner what is the

         25  purpose behind this proposal in regard to the urban
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          2  renewal side land? We need to have clarity on that.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Absolutely.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: What is the

          5  intention? What are the proposals? What are the

          6  limitations? What kind of construction is going to

          7  take place in there? Who is going to construct in

          8  there? Who is going to have the construction, the

          9  control of the construction that is going to happen

         10  in there? Are the communities going to have input in

         11  the process that is going to happen in there? Why

         12  does these proposals have to have empty land in

         13  order to be approved? It's because we have to have

         14  empty land to put some kind of light industries in

         15  place, retail spaces in place? And if that's the

         16  case, that that means that is going to exclude

         17  affordable housing? Because if that's the case, if

         18  the exclusion is part of the equation, I'm going to

         19  ask this Committee to vote no.

         20                 I want this proposal to pass, I want

         21  this proposal to be sustained and benefit all of the

         22  communities that have been affected, but not at the

         23  expense of killing another community. It is unfair.

         24  It is not right. The Mayor's office has a

         25  responsibility to benefit all New Yorkers. The
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          2  Committee has to find out why the lines were drawn

          3  in a way that they were. Why they didn't went (sic)

          4  to Avenue D, Avenue B, Avenue C, where the gross of

          5  the African-American and Latino community live, and

          6  the businesses of the African-American and Latino

          7  community are? Why only the pieces that include that

          8  community are from Delancey Street, Clinton, Essex

          9  and those little pieces which are two blocks in a

         10  sense included only, and if we're talking about

         11  really economic development for all, the people who

         12  have been affected by this whole mess, then you must

         13  include that community.

         14                 In conclusion I want to say this to

         15  the Committee, in case that you are not aware of it:

         16  When Mayor Giuliani closed down this part of

         17  Manhattan when September 11th occurred, Mayor

         18  Giuliani didn't close 34th Street, 23rd, Street,

         19  Mayor Giuliani went down to 14th Street. And they

         20  closed 14th Street from side to side to the River.

         21  And the reason to close 14th Street down is because

         22  this whole community geographically, politically and

         23  economically is connected and integrated.

         24                 And anything that happened in one

         25  have repercussions in others. The most affluent
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          2  community is closer to City Hall. The less affluent

          3  community is closer to 14th Street.

          4                 And in 14th Street is where we need

          5  the most amount of economic development in the area

          6  of Avenue D, Avenue C, Avenue B, Avenue A, First

          7  Avenue, Second Avenue and Third Avenue.

          8                 Then if we're going to talk about a

          9  real empire zone that is going to develop economic

         10  well-being for everybody, talk to me about all the

         11  lines. These are not the lines that accomplish that.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: I thank you very

         13  much for that testimony. At this time it is

         14  necessary -- I'm sorry, there are questions.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: My colleague

         16  Margarita Lopez, I have a question for you: You're

         17  saying that we should extend the line to include

         18  those avenues that you said?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I said that

         20  this proposal is incomplete if you don't extend the

         21  lines to really include the communities that have

         22  been affected by this. That's one thing that needs

         23  to be done with this proposal. And the second thing

         24  that had to be done with this proposal is definite

         25  answers about what is going to happen with the urban
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          2  renewal site that we have in our area that can

          3  produce thousands of affordable housing units for

          4  all New Yorkers.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: Okay. But you

          6  want the avenues that you just said, was that --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Avenue B,

          8  Avenue C, Avenue D.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: You want that

         10  included.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Avenue A.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: Okay.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Those avenues

         14  are part of this struggle.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: Okay. We'll

         16  ask the Commissioner if he could include those.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Thank you.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Council Member

         19  Lopez.

         20                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         21                 What you stated here really troubles

         22  me. I have a concern when there's no community input

         23  in a proposal that has such long-lasting

         24  ramifications for the development of a community.

         25                 Having worked in the economic
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          2  empowerment zone in the Bronx, I knew that community

          3  participation, community ownership and buy in to the

          4  process was critical for its success.

          5                 I wanted to know, first of all, the

          6  urban renewal area, is that privately held property?

          7  It's public property. Okay.

          8                 And there was a promise made for

          9  affordable housing some time ago that has yet to be

         10  fulfilled.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Only for that,

         12  supposedly, when that urban renewal side was put in

         13  place --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: It was promised

         16  that that side will be for production of affordable

         17  housing for the community that was displaced at the

         18  time.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Okay. All

         20  right. I'm concerned with why the Community Board

         21  was not consulted in this matter. And I'm concerned

         22  about the people who reside just outside the

         23  boundary of the proposed empire zone.

         24                 I state that having the knowledge of

         25  where the boundaries were cut in the South Bronx,
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          2  and what that meant for many people who, again, they

          3  had a historic devastation of growth and

          4  development. But understanding the ripple effect of

          5  what September 11th has meant for all of the

          6  communities going toward 14th Street, I guess the

          7  question to the Commissioner will be, are there very

          8  specific guidelines with respect to census tracks

          9  and numbers that they're trying to adhere to and why

         10  there wasn't a public process that enabled

         11  stakeholders within the community to help in the

         12  selection of the census track. So that those who

         13  have the knowledge on the ground level could provide

         14  the type of real hands-on knowledge about what

         15  development will mean in the area and how it will

         16  impact on the residents and the people who typically

         17  would become employed in the area, would receive

         18  services from the area.

         19                 I find the haste in putting together

         20  may mean waste in terms of, one, displacement of

         21  people who have lived in the community for several

         22  generations who have fought this struggle and still

         23  maintain their stance to be a productive part of

         24  developing the community, and other intentions.

         25  Because this seems to me that there are other
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          2  intentions that are not explicitly stated here, that

          3  could very well displace people.

          4                 So, I'm very concerned, Council

          5  Member Lopez, and I'm hoping that my concern can be

          6  allayed, because right now I find what you've said

          7  in light of what we've presented to be quite

          8  troubling. I just wanted to put that on the record.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: For the benefit

         10  of the Committee, I want the Committee to know that

         11  my community learned about this proposal 15 days ago

         12  when Councilwoman Lopez find out. And when

         13  Councilwoman Lopez find out, it was a fait accompli.

         14  The organizations that are appointed to be selected

         15  to be in charge of this were not inclusive selected.

         16                 I have Economic Development

         17  Organization that is the credit union that is in

         18  Avenue B. They didn't know nothing about this, they

         19  were never invited to be part of this.

         20                 Community Board 3 were not notified

         21  about this at all. It's my office who notified

         22  Community Board 3 about this proposal.

         23                 Why Community Board 3 is not

         24  notified, but Community Board 2 was, keep in mind

         25  the majority of the lines are in Community Board 3.
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          2  Keep in mind that. That's something that the

          3  Commissioner need to answer to us.

          4                 Keep in mind, Council Member Lopez

          5  have the majority of these lines in place in an area

          6  that was never showed to her, never put in place for

          7  her, although Councilwoman Lopez told very clear to

          8  the Office of the Mayor that she was more than

          9  willing to look into the piece of legislation that

         10  they were talking about, please let me see it and

         11  then I will be more than glad to introduce a piece

         12  of legislation. It was never given to me. It was

         13  never allowed for me to see it until I saw it in the

         14  floor the day it was introduced. And after that I

         15  was not able to get hold of the piece of legislation

         16  either.

         17                 Then 15 days since we know of this

         18  issue in my community, in 15 days that was my

         19  vacation, I had to cancel my vacation to organize my

         20  community and to be able to be here.

         21                 That's the reason you don't see here

         22  the community that was excluded, because it was not

         23  time to mobilize them to come here. That community

         24  didn't know nothing about this, there was no time to

         25  notify them, and you're going to see a group of
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          2  people who are here from that community who are

          3  coming to testify because the first group of people

          4  that we can reach out to in 15 days.

          5                 Then it's a clear exclusion, the

          6  businesses on Clinton Street, on Delancey Street,

          7  they don't know this is happening, they have not

          8  been reached out to.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Thank you, Mr.

         10  Chair.

         11                 Councilwoman, I totally understand

         12  where you're coming from and I think you were

         13  obviously notified way too late in this process and

         14  I think you should have had a seat at the table from

         15  the beginning of this process, and I think I would

         16  share your frustration if someone was doing

         17  something in my district and did not tell me two

         18  weeks out.

         19                 With that in mind, though, it's my

         20  understanding, correct me if I'm wrong, that, one,

         21  we're under time constraints to approve this, that

         22  it's use it or lose it if we don't approve it, but

         23  that if we do approve it, that the lines can then be

         24  changed post-approving to maybe expand the economic

         25  impact area; is that correct?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: That is

          3  correct. But that doesn't fulfill the commitment of

          4  what are the lines that are going to be included.

          5                 If the Council doesn't get to a

          6  commitment that is clearly stated in black and

          7  white, because that's the only thing we respect in

          8  this country, and some time we don't even respect

          9  that because we desecrate our own constitution, if

         10  it's not in black and white, saying very clear that

         11  that expansion is going to include the particular

         12  lines that we need to be included, that is a

         13  problem.

         14                 And the second problem is that unless

         15  this proposal states very clear what is going to

         16  happen with that piece of land, the urban renewal

         17  site, I don't see how we're going to have control

         18  over this after the fact.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Thank you.

         20                 COMMISSIONER SANDERS: Thank you very

         21  much, Council member.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Thank you to

         23  all of you, and I want to let you know this, I

         24  apologize to each and every one of you for having to

         25  be in this situation and putting you in this
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          2  situation. I really apologize to each and every one

          3  of you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: No apology

          5  needed. We accept your heart-felt position.

          6                 The next person, please.

          7                 MS. REID: I'd like to call Jennifer

          8  Houlihan of the Lower East Side BID.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Mr. Chair, may

         10  I ask for a point to make a one-minute statement?

         11  Less than one minute.

         12                 Mr. Chair, I just want to note, in

         13  the aftermath of Councilwoman Lopez' testimony that

         14  in the end of the day, as we go forward, whether we

         15  agree or whether I agree or disagree with Council

         16  Member Lopez on any of the particular issues that we

         17  must deal with, we all need to recognize that

         18  Council Member Lopez does speak as an important

         19  representative of the community, that her point may

         20  be taken with the utmost of seriousness and the only

         21  way we will succeed in going forward is by working

         22  collaboratively with all the elected officials

         23  representing this area, and that includes Council

         24  Member Lopez. And I want to thank her for her

         25  commitment and for her passion and for being here
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          2  today. I know she's talking to the press, but I hope

          3  she's hearing a little bit of the nice things that

          4  I'm saying about her because they're very well

          5  intentioned. But certainly we need to take her word

          6  with the utmost of seriousness, and I will address

          7  later the substance of her remarks but we all need

          8  to recognize that when Council Member Lopez speaks,

          9  she does speak on behalf of the community, and she

         10  does add a very important voice which must be heeded

         11  as we go forward.

         12                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Commissioner

         14  Walsh, would you please come forward.

         15                 Good to see you, Mr. Commissioner.

         16                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Nice seeing you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Could you hold?

         18  You're about to be sworn in, Mr. Commissioner.

         19                 PARTICIPANT: (Not identified for the

         20  record.) Commissioner, could you please raise your

         21  right hand?

         22                 Do you swear or affirm that the

         23  testimony you're about to give before this Committee

         24  is the complete and absolute truth?

         25                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: I do.
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          2                 PARTICIPANT: Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: First things

          4  first, sir; what happened to your arm?

          5                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: I think it's

          6  clear that Council Member Lopez plays hardball.

          7                 Business Improvement District is a

          8  tough business. It's a baseball injury. You could

          9  tell I should have long retired.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Whatever it

         11  takes to bring economic development to New York

         12  City, sir. It's a tough business.

         13                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Thank you very

         14  much, and it's great to see everybody here. Good

         15  morning, Chairman, and members of the Economic

         16  Development Committee. I'm Bob Walsh, I'm

         17  Commissioner of the Department of Business Services.

         18  I appreciate the opportunity to testify in favor of

         19  this bill, which would authorize the City of New

         20  York to submit an application for a new

         21  empire zone.

         22                 With me is Mark Newhouse, our

         23  Assistant Commissioner for Neighborhood Development

         24  and Yoonie Cho, who is the Director of Empire Zones

         25  Program, and they've done a tremendous job in a very
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          2  short time to pull this together.

          3                 A key component of New York City's

          4  economic development policy is to provide incentives

          5  that attract new businesses and grow businesses in

          6  different areas of the City.

          7                 The New York State Empire Zone

          8  Program is an effective incentive package that

          9  accomplishes these goals.

         10                 The Empire Zone Program is a targeted

         11  program that benefits certain areas of the state

         12  facing long-term unemployment and economic

         13  disadvantage.

         14                 This program provides private

         15  investment, public development and job creation

         16  through a set of tax credits provided by the State.

         17  They include wage tax credits, investments tax and

         18  employment incentive tax credits, and along with

         19  sales tax exemptions. These benefits, and all other

         20  tax credits and refunds that are part of the program

         21  are paid entirely by the State and that's something

         22  we should emphasize here today.

         23                 That means this economic development

         24  incentive is enjoyed at virtually no cost to the

         25  City.
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          2                 Currently New York City has ten

          3  empire zone programs and I will say they've been

          4  very successful programs in various parts of the

          5  City. I'm not going to read all of them - East

          6  Brooklyn, Hunt's Point, Port Morris, Jamaica, North

          7  Shore, South Shore, and the benefits have been

          8  clear.

          9                 To date, we can attribute over 8,500

         10  jobs, and $1.2 billion in private investment to the

         11  913 New York City businesses certified in the empire

         12  zone programs.

         13                 In late June New York State announced

         14  that it was accepting applications for the

         15  designation of six new zones. Applications are made

         16  on behalf of municipalities and the process is very

         17  competitive. Representatives of the Empire State

         18  Development Corporation told us they anticipate

         19  about 30 applications for the six designations. So,

         20  basically what we're doing is we're competing with

         21  at least 30 other municipalities throughout the

         22  State for the six competitive slots.

         23                 We know that there are several

         24  applications out there and we expect them coming

         25  from all over the state and in the downstate area
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          2  alone. Nassau County, Sussex County are definitely

          3  putting forward applications, as far as we could

          4  tell.

          5                 The deadlines for these applications

          6  is August 30th. We heard in late June the deadline

          7  is August 30th and that's something that we have to

          8  stress in this.

          9                 While we applaud the state's

         10  announcement, we were disconcerted by the eight-week

         11  window that we had between the announcement and the

         12  deadline.

         13                 And this is a very important point to

         14  stress today is because we've had a short time to

         15  put and crunch a lot of numbers. We could talk about

         16  that during the Q and A, I hope. Some of the census

         17  data for 2000 is not available, as we all know, so

         18  we've been working with some of the 1990 numbers

         19  that are available, and that's made things a lot

         20  more difficult, and it's led to Yoonie and Mark sort

         21  of working around the clock trying to put things

         22  together, just so we could get a designation so we

         23  could be in the game for the future.

         24                 I think the other important point

         25  here to stress today is that of the ten empire zones
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          2  that we've had, eight of them, eight of them have

          3  already gone through revisions, and the way they

          4  have gone through revisions is through a community

          5  process, and the Council has played a critical role

          6  in that. Get the designation, and then you have

          7  flexibility with the boundaries, but the key thing

          8  in such a competitive economic development

          9  environment, I would urge is that we get the

         10  designation first. I will give everybody here a

         11  commitment. I will work. I will work with Council

         12  Member Lopez, Council Member Gerson and this body to

         13  ensure that I am involved and active, to make sure

         14  that there's representation across the board and to

         15  deal with some of the concerns as have been outlined

         16  by Council Member Lopez.

         17                 I give you that commitment, and I

         18  give you that commitment today.

         19                 But given these significant time

         20  constraints, the City explored several different

         21  options for a new zone and focuses its attention on

         22  the eastern portion of Lower Manhattan, and area

         23  that includes, Lower East Side, Chinatown and Little

         24  Italy. And we thought it was an excellent candidate

         25  for zone designation for several reasons.
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          2                 First, zone businesses have been

          3  severely impacted by the events of September 11th.

          4  We've all heard about them. We've had a number of

          5  hearings. Our agency has been combing through that

          6  neighborhood quite a bit. In fact, we've moved some

          7  of our computer training programs at our central

          8  office into Chinatown to help out as best we can.

          9                 The poor access to the area, coupled

         10  with the general economic decline has deeply hurt

         11  many of the small businesses in the area.

         12                 Second, the zone exhibits chronic

         13  economic disadvantage in the form of unemployment

         14  and poverty.

         15                 Equally important, we were able to

         16  get data to document these two points in the

         17  application. And let me just run through a couple of

         18  numbers. I don't want to belabor the point, but the

         19  average unemployment rate in the zone is ten

         20  percent, the average poverty rate 21 percent.

         21  Approximately 4,855 businesses operate in the zone.

         22  Most of those businesses are family-owned

         23  businesses. There are 33,000 plus wage owners in the

         24  zone, 15,000 workers. Fifteen-thousand workers were

         25  dislocated as a result of September 11th.
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          2  Twenty-three percent of the labor force in Chinatown

          3  alone, as 7,683 people were laid off. Over 7,600

          4  people laid off in the three months after September

          5  11th.

          6                 This massive layoff amounts to about

          7  $114 million in total wage losses. We know, we heard

          8  the garment workers have suffered dramatically,

          9  restaurant workers, jewelry stores have also

         10  experienced incredible decline.

         11                 Finally, we chose this zone because

         12  we were able to find broad support among community

         13  businesses, residents and organizations. We've

         14  worked directly with the community on the

         15  development of the application.

         16                 Remember, late June, we worked

         17  through July and August. On July 15th I hosted an

         18  information center session that we had 20 attendees

         19  from community organizations and organized labor,

         20  and, yes, we invited the community boards.

         21                 Many of these community leaders

         22  continue to attend weekly meetings. I could count at

         23  least six that I know of, meetings. Mark and Yoonie

         24  have been at various meetings with Council Member

         25  Gerson, with Council Member Lopez and many of the
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          2  community groups throughout the area. This

          3  interaction has been extremely helpful, extremely

          4  helpful, and it has allowed us to outreach to more

          5  members in the community. We are encouraged by the

          6  wide range of support. We know we have much more

          7  work to do, we know we're going to have revisions as

          8  we put the designation together, we know that. So,

          9  the worst thing we could have done is sat on the

         10  sidelines and said this application and the

         11  complexities of the community and some of the past

         12  history is too hard to deal with. We knew we needed

         13  to deal with this thing head on, and that's what we

         14  did.

         15                 The bill that has been submitted to

         16  you, because the application for a zone must contain

         17  enacted legislation authorizing the submission of

         18  the application. Your review of this bill and

         19  scheduling of this hearing is essential to the

         20  process.  Upon the passage of the bill, the

         21  application could then be filed with the state by

         22  the scheduled deadline.

         23                 We are fortunate enough to receive

         24  this designation -- if we're fortunate enough to

         25  receive the designation, the City will then
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          2  designate a zone administrative board to oversee the

          3  performance.

          4                 According to the State law, and this

          5  is important, the Board must consist of a minimum of

          6  six members, including representatives of business,

          7  residents, laborers and financial institutions.

          8  Traditionally the Commissioner of the Department of

          9  Business Services chairs the Board. I have taken an

         10  active role in this. Mark Newhouse, our Assistant

         11  Commissioner, has even more so, on behalf of the

         12  Mayor, to make this happen.

         13                 Given the wide range of community

         14  affiliations and interest in this particular zone,

         15  I'm looking forward to working with the Council, I'm

         16  looking forward to working with Council Member

         17  Gerson and Lopez on identifying the right number,

         18  and the breadth of community representation that

         19  serve on this particular Board.

         20                 Our staff continues to work extremely

         21  hard to finalize the application and to submit it on

         22  time.

         23                 Thank you for this opportunity. I

         24  urge you to support this legislation.

         25                 I'm happy to answer any questions
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          2  that you may have.

          3                 Thank you, again.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Thank you very

          5  much for testifying.

          6                 Let me be the first to raise some

          7  questions.

          8                 Sir, let's talk about the question of

          9  the lines and where the lines were drawn and how the

         10  lines were drawn, but let me do it easier, nicer,

         11  how they were drawn would perhaps take three or four

         12  different hearings to discuss.

         13                 I'm more interested in knowing that

         14  these may not be the final lines, and if there are

         15  segments of the community that have not -- that are

         16  not included within these lines to the fullest

         17  extent of the law wherever it is possible, that we

         18  will include new areas to take in other pockets of

         19  poverty, other pockets of different communities,

         20  things of this nature.

         21                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: The key thing

         22  was, and given the time constraint, we've got to

         23  work fast, and let me talk about the boundaries

         24  first of all, and why.

         25                 A lot of this was based on census
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          2  tract information that we had available.

          3                 A lot of this is also based on the

          4  eligibility, the eligibility as outlined by empire

          5  zones. Yoonie and Mark could talk a lot more about

          6  that because it's very particular.

          7                 The empire zone is not going to, you

          8  know, resolve a lot of these other issues that we're

          9  hearing about land use and the housing and other, it

         10  provides another tool, another tool for economic

         11  development stimulus that we could apply. And I

         12  think that's key, that's important.

         13                 When we sat down and we started

         14  looking at this, we knew those numbers of

         15  unemployment and how this community has suffered

         16  since 9/11, and we really focused on this and said,

         17  okay, let's concentrate on the area where we have

         18  numbers, and once we get our foot in the door, we

         19  could go forward and we could make revisions as they

         20  have done that.

         21                 The Council recently, as you

         22  recalled, made revisions to two of the empire zones

         23  just in the last couple of months, so there's

         24  flexibility.

         25                 The key part of this, the key part of
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          2  all of this, the key part of the successful empire

          3  zone is to have a successful Board of Directors. You

          4  have my commitment, as soon as we get designation,

          5  we have a good shot at this, but let's get our foot

          6  in the door first, and we could work forward from

          7  that.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Sir, we, you and

          9  I have worked well together in days gone by. I look

         10  forward to us working many, many years to come doing

         11  good things for the City of New York.

         12                 I'm really a traditional guy in many

         13  respects, a man's word has meaning to me.

         14                 I believe I've heard you give your

         15  word that you were going to include communities that

         16  have been left out of this process. I'm not saying

         17  maliciously left out, I'm just saying they have been

         18  left out.

         19                 Do I have your word on that?

         20                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Absolutely.

         21                 And as I mentioned to you, I've been

         22  very involved in this. Neighborhood building is a

         23  key part of the future of small business services.

         24                 I've been out there, I've walked

         25  districts, I know the districts, I've been out to
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          2  Chinatown a number of times. Commissioner Newhouse

          3  has met with the Council members time and time

          4  again, I think until last night, he had a community

          5  meeting until 9:30. You have my word, as soon as we

          6  get designation, we will put together a group to

          7  immediately look to how we can enhance and build on

          8  the success.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Thank you, Mr.

         10  Commissioner.

         11                 Council Member Gioia.

         12                 I'm sorry, I stand corrected. Council

         13  Member Dilan. I had Gioia on my mind.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Commissioner,

         15  it's good to see you again.

         16                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: It's good seeing

         17  you.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: I appreciate

         19  your commitment to work with Council Members Gerson,

         20  Lopez and this body, to expand the boundaries, if we

         21  do indeed vote this out of Committee and Stated

         22  Meeting today. I just have a question for clarity's

         23  sake.

         24                 As far as amending or adjusting

         25  lines, as the empowerment zone goes, does the final
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          2  say end with your office or do we need input from

          3  any other state offices? Who has final jurisdiction

          4  as to the expansion of the lines?

          5                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: I'm going to pass

          6  the buck on this, because these are the guys that

          7  know the specifics of that.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Thank you.

          9                 MS. CHO: The final jurisdiction lies

         10  with the state. The Empire State Development

         11  Corporation, the management body refers, recommends

         12  the application to the State Review Board, and the

         13  state reviews within eight weeks of time usually.

         14                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: But it's clear to

         15  say, as we did recently, I remember the Staten

         16  Island revision that we just made, it comes again

         17  before the City Council.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: I wanted to

         19  follow your question, sir, and say how often is that

         20  suggestion accepted by the state?

         21                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Have we been

         22  rejected?

         23                 MS. CHO: It's accepted at every

         24  request.

         25                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: That's in the
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          2  history. It's been accepted, I guess we've had at

          3  least eight of the ten, you know, of the existing

          4  zones.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: So, your

          6  commitment here today is a commitment to lobby the

          7  state to expand he lines of the zone, but you do not

          8  have the ultimate jurisdiction to expand that zone?

          9                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: The key part of

         10  this, and it all goes back to an active and engaged

         11  board. The board would make the recommendations, the

         12  recommendations would come before me. We would look

         13  at the numbers, we would make sure that the census

         14  data is accurate, correct, we would get the

         15  contract, all the other information, we would

         16  present it to the governing body of the City

         17  Council.

         18                 We would hope that we would get your

         19  approval, and that it would go before the state.

         20  That's how it would work.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Are there any

         23  more questions? Oh, I'm sorry, Councilman Recchia, I

         24  stand corrected.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: Commissioner,
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          2  how you doing?

          3                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: I'm doing well.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: My colleague,

          5  Margarita Lopez, has some problems with this, okay,

          6  and I just want to understand a few things.

          7                 Now, once this application is filed,

          8  there will be a way to amend the boundaries; is that

          9  correct?

         10                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Once we get

         11  designation -- this is not a slam dunk, we have

         12  competition, as I mentioned, in the state. You know,

         13  30 applicants, that's what we're guessing, for the

         14  six spots. Once we get designated, we can begin the

         15  process. In fact, we could begin now looking at it.

         16  If we're very confident about it, we should be

         17  looking at it now and begin looking at the where,

         18  when, how to make this thing happen.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: Okay.

         20                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: But you need a

         21  governing board to put this together to make it go

         22  forward.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: All right. My

         24  answers are very simple.

         25                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Sure.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            53

          1  COMMITTEE ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: Very direct.

          3  Once we get designated, we could amend the

          4  boundaries.

          5                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: That's correct.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: Yes or no?

          7                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: Okay.

          9                 And once we get designated and we can

         10  amend the boundaries, is there any way, or areas

         11  that we cannot go?

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER NEWHOUSE:

         13  There are areas we --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: Very simple

         15  answer; yes or no.

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER NEWHOUSE: No.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: No, there's

         18  no areas that --

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER NEWHOUSE: Yes,

         20  there are areas we could not go. You need to meet --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: What areas

         22  can we not go?

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER NEWHOUSE: We

         24  couldn't amend the boundaries in such a way that

         25  they were out of sync with the state's requirements
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          2  regarding census track eligibility.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: That's not

          4  good enough for me. I want to know exactly the

          5  blocks we cannot go. Could you please tell me?

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER NEWHOUSE: I

          7  don't have that information.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: I have a

          9  problem with this. I have a problem when a colleague

         10  of mine comes into this chamber and says that there

         11  are certain blocks that were left out and she feels

         12  that that needs help, too, that they should be

         13  included, okay? And I need to know, if we are

         14  allowed to amend it, if those blocks for some reason

         15  cannot be included, and I'm most interested in

         16  Avenue A, Avenue B, Avenue C, Avenue D.

         17                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Council member,

         18  the issue here, and it's a bit of a complex one, is

         19  on the formulas. If we add concentrated areas of

         20  housing, or we add concentrated areas where the

         21  census track is above and beyond the eligibility, we

         22  could be forfeiting the entire application, and

         23  that's part of the problem here in putting this

         24  together.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: Okay. So, my
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          2  question to you is: So then would I be correct in

          3  saying if you add Avenue A, Avenue B, Avenue C and

          4  Avenue D, that doesn't fit into the criteria?

          5                 MS. CHO: It depends on the census

          6  data information that's carried by those blocks.

          7                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: In terms of

          8  income, unemployment, vacancy rates, there's a

          9  number of key pieces.

         10                 We have looked at a number of things

         11  in terms of trying to strike a balance. The

         12  difficulty of doing this at the 11th hour is, if you

         13  add certain pieces of it, you could end up throwing

         14  this off track where the entire application could be

         15  forfeited.

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER NEWHOUSE: But

         17  to your point, Councilman, those areas could be

         18  added in a boundary amendment, if they meet the

         19  census track requirements, and any other areas that

         20  meet the census track requirements could be added.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: Did anybody,

         22  prior to coming here today, see if those areas fit

         23  into the requirements of the empire zone?

         24                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: I think I

         25  mentioned to you that we had census data information

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            56

          1  COMMITTEE ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

          2  for some of the areas that we were looking at, and

          3  incomplete information for others.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: So nobody

          5  looked at to see if these avenues could be included?

          6                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: I don't know the

          7  specifics, whether we looked at Avenue A, B, C, D,

          8  but we looked at a lot of the surrounding areas,

          9  and, you know, the key thing is to have confident

         10  information and have a confident application that

         11  you could grow on, rather than having incomplete

         12  information that is sketchy that you cannot. That

         13  has been the success that we've had in the past, and

         14  that's the formula that, you know, that we're

         15  putting forward to you today.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Council Member

         17  Recchia, I share your concern. If you will be kind

         18  enough to -- your points are so accurate, if you

         19  will be kind enough to lend me a little bit of

         20  faith, because I'm going to work with these good

         21  people to ensure that the very blocks, within

         22  reason, I mean we don't want anything out of reason,

         23  but I'm a very reasonable man and I believe that the

         24  people of New York deserve nothing better. The very

         25  blocks we're speaking about, we will do due

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            57

          1  COMMITTEE ON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

          2  diligence to ensure that they meet that, if you

          3  would be kind enough, sir.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: Mr. Sanders,

          5  sounds great, but I would like to hear that from the

          6  Commissioner, okay? I want the commitment from the

          7  Commissioner that the blocks that we're talking

          8  about, he will try to be inclusive of those blocks,

          9  and they will be taken into consideration.

         10                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: We will look at

         11  those blocks. We will look at the poverty index,

         12  we'll look at unemployment, we'll look at vacancies;

         13  if it fits we will work to get them in the zone.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: And we'll try

         15  to include them?

         16                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Absolutely.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Can you live

         18  with that, sir?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: I can live

         20  with that.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: For the moment.

         22                 Thank you very much, Council Member

         23  Recchia.

         24                 Council Member Gerson.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Thank you, Mr.
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          2  Chair.

          3                 Thank you, colleagues, for your

          4  indulgence, as we've all -- and thank you,

          5  Commissioner, and members of the Department and

          6  members of the audience -- we all have those days,

          7  today is my day where I'm supposed to be three

          8  places at the same time. I have a resolution pending

          9  next door in Cultural Affairs on the 9/11

         10  anniversary, and we have a press conference with the

         11  Speaker in response to the Lower Manhattan

         12  Development Corporation plans, so all at the same

         13  time essentially.

         14                 So, I'm going to be three very quick

         15  questions, which for the record, if you will.

         16                 Commissioner, I've been spending a

         17  lot of time with your Department lately and I'm very

         18  impressed with your Department.

         19                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Thank you very

         20  much.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: I just want to

         22  confirm my understanding of conversations I've had

         23  with you and with other officials of your

         24  Department.

         25                 First, on the boundaries, is it
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          2  correct that you have in fact agreed to immediately

          3  pursue three specific boundary adjustments and

          4  extensions, in terms of getting the process going,

          5  after the adoption of the empire zone and

          6  immediately after the adoption, and they are

          7  specifically the extension, the northeast sector

          8  from Madison Street, from Madison and East Broadway,

          9  the intersection north, along Madison Street to

         10  Grand Street, I mean north along East Broadway to

         11  Grand Street, south to Grand Street to Madison and

         12  then back south to Montgomery. Excuse me, to

         13  Montgomery.

         14                 Let me repeat that. The corner of

         15  Montgomery and Madison, north to east Broadway --

         16  excuse me -- west to east Broadway, north to Grand

         17  Street, south to Madison -- excuse me -- east to

         18  Madison and then south to Montgomery, that block; is

         19  that correct?

         20                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: That's correct.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Okay,

         22  furthermore, starting at the corner of Houston and

         23  Clinton Street, Houston and Clinton Street to kind

         24  of close up the square that seems to -- that little

         25  square box that seems to have been omitted, so that
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          2  you would go, proceeding starting at Houston and

          3  Clinton, you would go east to Pitt, south along Pitt

          4  to Rivington, west along Rivington to Clinton, and

          5  then north on Clinton to Houston.

          6                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: We talked about

          7  that before the meeting, that's correct.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: And you've

          9  agreed to pursue that one?

         10                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: We will pursue

         11  it.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: And finally --

         13                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER NEWHOUSE: With

         14  one caveat --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Obviously

         16  subject to all the --

         17                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER NEWHOUSE: I

         18  think there's a public school in that particular

         19  area that I reviewed with your staff, and we would

         20  be inclined to exclude the school.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Yes, yes.

         22  Thank you.

         23                 And then, finally, the smaller of the

         24  two urban renewal zones, which these boundaries, you

         25  know, separate out, starting at the Bowery and
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          2  Houston Street, you would go north along the Bowery

          3  to East 4th Street, east on East 4th Street to

          4  Second Avenue, and then south, which is an extension

          5  of Christie Street, and then south on Second Avenue

          6  back to east Houston, and north on East Houston back

          7  to the Bowery, which would in fact encompass all of

          8  that Coopers Square urban renewal zone; is that

          9  correct?

         10                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: That's correct.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Okay.

         12                 My next question: Is it correct that

         13  you have agreed to add language to a document which

         14  is going to be incorporated in the application, it's

         15  the question and answer document which reads to the

         16  effect as follows: "Specifically this zone has

         17  neither the authority nor the goal of determining

         18  the allotment of any land between commercial and

         19  affordable housing uses. It should be a goal of the

         20  zone to leave sufficient opportunity for the

         21  creation and preservation of affordable housing as

         22  determined by the normal governmental processes."

         23                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: We will add that

         24  addendum.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: That is
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          2  correct.

          3                 And, finally, has there been a

          4  commitment of the Administration that in appointing,

          5  in making appointments to the Board of Directors of

          6  the empire zone, that before appointments are made

          7  you would consult with the Council members

          8  representing the area and make all efforts to make

          9  appointments which reflect the diversity and the

         10  cross section of the population of the businesses

         11  within the empire zone; is that correct?

         12                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Yes.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Okay. Thank

         14  you. Forgive me for my directness, but I appreciate

         15  your testimony.

         16                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Thank you. Thank

         17  you for all your help.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: And Madam

         19  Acting Chair, thank you for your indulgence.

         20                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: I guess my

         21  concern has to do with the urban renewal site that

         22  Margarita Lopez talked about, and I, you know, I

         23  recognize the urgency of the matter of which we're

         24  talking about, but when we deal with Land Use

         25  questions, once the designation is in place, do we,
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          2  as a City, have a significant role in being able to

          3  negotiate the use of land at that stage?  Once it

          4  becomes an empire zone, will we still have an

          5  ability to influence and impact the use of that

          6  space? It's pretty clear to me that there seem to be

          7  some, you know, divergent views of the use of the

          8  land, but it seems to me that there's a

          9  long-standing commitment of over 30 years to deal

         10  with the housing situation over there. So, I'm very,

         11  very concerned that once we get the designation, and

         12  I'm assuming that because we're in such haste, we

         13  have at least some assurety that our application

         14  will be given its kindest consideration.

         15                 What can you say about that piece?

         16                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: I think the

         17  Councilman, and he was right, Councilman Gerson said

         18  it best with the added addendum to the -- on his

         19  point about the affordable housing, having that to

         20  ensure that we're not mixing apples and oranges, if

         21  you will. This is an economic development incentive

         22  program. This is not a land use, you know, program.

         23  This is not a strategic plan for the community. We

         24  stick to our knitting, and our knitting is to

         25  provide jobs and provide incentives to bring new
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          2  businesses in the area. That is not an area that we

          3  are going to get involved in.

          4                 Mark, I don't know if you want to add

          5  anything to that.

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER NEWHOUSE: No,

          7  I think that's accurate. I think it's important to

          8  understand the distinction between local Land Use

          9  regulation and the empire zone. The benefits that

         10  come with the empire zone designation are in no way

         11  related to local land use regulation. That has

         12  precedence and is set entirely separately. Zone

         13  benefits would only apply to businesses that are

         14  operating legally in places that the City has

         15  designated they can operate in for commercial

         16  manufacturing industrial uses.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Well,

         18  typically what happens is when you have a tract of

         19  vacant land in an empire zone, the assumption is

         20  that you want to build or create an environment

         21  where business can locate, and I think that is where

         22  Margarita, you know, is a bit antsy about this

         23  proposal because if the overriding pressure coming

         24  from the state is to, you know, commercialize the

         25  area, or to create some sort of industry in that
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          2  land track, which has been a longstanding dispute

          3  with respect to the building of affordable housing,

          4  that's where I'm concerned that we have some

          5  influence, and that's why I raised the question. I

          6  clearly understand, and certainly most zones are

          7  more industrial manufacturing by nature.

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER NEWHOUSE:

          9  Right.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: But here we

         11  have included in the census track vacant land, which

         12  could easily be converted into some sort of

         13  manufacturing, light manufacturing or commercial

         14  use, and I think I'm concerned about us being able

         15  to preserve some of the integrity of the Council

         16  member who has fought a 30-year struggle to get

         17  affordable housing and now we're saying, well, we

         18  need this track in order to really fit the

         19  specifications of becoming a zone and it doesn't

         20  become an oakie-doke situation, it's like, okay, we

         21  need your land because, you know, it helps in terms

         22  of specification for our application, don't worry

         23  about the housing situation, and the next thing we

         24  know, you know, some manufacturer says, that's ideal

         25  land for, you know, a plant that's going to bring in
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          2  3,000 jobs, and now we're in the position where we

          3  have to say, you know, well, do the people need

          4  housing more than they need employment when there's

          5  been a 30-year struggle for housing in that area.

          6  So, that was my concern.

          7                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: And I think it's

          8  well put, what you said, and it's an important

          9  balance of building, maintaining affordable housing

         10  and also bringing new businesses in an area that has

         11  been hit hard.

         12                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: Are there

         13  any further questions?

         14                 Council Member Dilan.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Thank you,

         16  Madam Chair, Mr. Chair.

         17                 Commissioner, I just have one brief

         18  question. You may have stated this in your opening

         19  testimony, but I think this, for the sake of clarity

         20  for myself I may need it reiterated.

         21                 What are the benefits, the financial

         22  benefits, to the region due to the zone?

         23                 Because I guess if we vote this down

         24  we stand to lose these benefits, so I need to know

         25  that for clarity.
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          2                 Also, since I've come to this Council

          3  I've been screaming that the City spends too much on

          4  the fire industry, so I just want to state that I'm

          5  pleased to see you here pushing for the

          6  manufacturing sector of the City.

          7                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Thank you.

          8                 Well, the program stimulates private

          9  investment. That's what this program is all about.

         10  Business development, job creation provides a series

         11  of tax credits - wage tax credits, investment tax

         12  credits, employment incentives - these are the

         13  benefits, in terms of the cost to the City, it does

         14  not cost the City, these are the state benefits. So,

         15  it's not costing us.

         16                 The key thing --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Excuse me. I

         18  think you may be a little confused. I didn't ask the

         19  cost, just the benefits that the City will receive

         20  from the state.

         21                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Did you want to

         22  talk about the specifics of them? Go ahead.

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER NEWHOUSE: The

         24  program is designed really to encourage employment

         25  and investments, so actually --
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          2                 MS. CHO: The program provides wage

          3  tax credit up to $3,000 per person. That is a

          4  maximum. And sales tax exemption of 4.25 percent of

          5  the state sales tax, that is a tremendous relief.

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER NEWHOUSE: So,

          7  in terms of what the economic impact to the City has

          8  been, we're trying to get a better handle on that,

          9  but right now, within the ten other empire zones

         10  throughout the City we've certified 913 businesses,

         11  and they, in turn, we think, have created about

         12  8,500, 8,600 jobs as a result of the program, and we

         13  stimulated investment around $1.2 billion of private

         14  investment.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: My friends, we

         16  are engaged in democracy at its best. Even as we

         17  speak, we are trying to resolve a dozen different

         18  issues to find some way to make sure that all

         19  communities move forward, to ensure that communities

         20  are not left out for any mistaken reason. So, I urge

         21  your participation, but also your patience here.

         22  Democracy is a work in order, a work that's being

         23  created even as we speak.

         24                 Were there any further questions for

         25  the Commissioner?
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          2                 Let me then thank you, Mr.

          3  Commissioner, and thank you for your staff. I

          4  appreciate you have put your word on the line here,

          5  and as a person who believes in that type of stuff,

          6  I look forward to making sure it's a success.

          7                 Needless to say, I would be astounded

          8  if your word had no meaning, but I'm glad it does.

          9                 Thank you very much, sir.

         10                 COMMISSIONER WALSH: Well, thank you

         11  very much for your help.

         12                 MS. REID: I'd like to hear from

         13  Gladys Rosenblum from Loisaida. Is she here? She's

         14  here, okay. Can we also have Mary Spink of the Lower

         15  East Side Peoples Mutual come up as well?

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Thank you very

         17  much. Whoever is going to testify first, if you can

         18  begin.

         19                 MS. ROSENBLUM: Hi. My name is Gladys

         20  Rosenblum, I'm the Executive Director of Loisaida,

         21  Inc., we're a Youth Employment and After School

         22  Readiness Program. Thank you for the opportunity to

         23  speak today.

         24                 Loisaida, Inc., is a community-based

         25  organization founded in 1979 at a time when the
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          2  Lower East Side community was confronted with

          3  violence, drugs, gangs and poverty.

          4                 At that time, 126 agencies,

          5  businesses and individuals formed a task force to

          6  address the problems and make the neighborhood a

          7  safe and good place for families. From that task

          8  force, which included the Chase Manhattan Bank, Con

          9  Edison, the New York City Police Department, evolved

         10  Loisaida, Inc., with a commitment to develop the

         11  community through developing their youth. Over the

         12  past 23 years, Loisaida, Inc. has grown into a

         13  continuum of services including after school and

         14  youth development programs ensuring our children and

         15  youth will have the opportunities to acquire the

         16  skills they need to succeed in life.

         17                 Throughout the years, Loisaida, Inc.

         18  has worked with thousands of youth to prepare them

         19  to enter and succeed in the workforce. Loisaida,

         20  Inc. continues to work with young people to ensure

         21  they attain the necessary education and training

         22  that will prepare them for the world of work. Today

         23  our teen fathers are in our entrepreneurship program

         24  designing their own businesses. They have dreams of

         25  opening their own legitimate businesses in our
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          2  community one day, but they need jobs today to

          3  develop the skills that will enable them to make

          4  their dreams come true.

          5                 However, all of the preparation does

          6  not make up for the facts that 104,000 private

          7  sector jobs vanished this past year and 267,000

          8  people are looking for work in New York City

          9  according to a report published in the New York

         10  Times on June 30, 2002.

         11                 Based on our current economic

         12  situation, there has been a domino effect forcing

         13  college graduates to accept positions that were

         14  formerly filled by high school graduates. Therefore,

         15  the young people in our community are facing an even

         16  greater challenge to get a legitimate job.

         17                 Loisaida, Inc. supports in principle

         18  the economic stimulus package proposed for the

         19  Chinatown/Lower East Side neighborhoods. However, we

         20  are deeply concerned that the Lower East Side as

         21  outlined in the proposed plan does not include the

         22  Lower East Side in its entirety. The proposed

         23  package excludes the area above Houston,

         24  specifically Avenues A, B, C and D.

         25                 Many of the young people we are
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          2  helping to prepare for employment and assist with

          3  getting jobs live in that part of the community. In

          4  fact, the Youth Committee of Community Board 3

          5  identified youth employment as a high priority for

          6  this coming year.

          7                 The businesses above Houston,

          8  especially along Avenues A, B, C and D must be

          9  included in the Empire Zone. This would give

         10  businesses in our community additional resources to

         11  help their businesses grow and position them to hire

         12  additional staff.

         13                 They would be able to create

         14  employment opportunities for our young people

         15  enabling them to gain legitimate jobs that will put

         16  and keep them on the right path.

         17                 In 1979 a joint effort enabling the

         18  business community made a difference in the Lower

         19  East Side. Strengthening the local businesses will

         20  play a vital role in continuing the efforts to

         21  improve the economic base of the community. It will

         22  give hope to the youth in our community, and more

         23  importantly, give them jobs and critical work

         24  experience.

         25                 With the right opportunities, our
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          2  young people can and will be the future business

          3  owners of our community.

          4                 I urge you to include the whole Lower

          5  East Side, especially Avenues A, B, C and D, up to

          6  14th Street in the empire zone and ultimately

          7  support the youth of the Lower East Side.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON CLARKE: Thank you.

         10  Our next testimony.

         11                 MS. SPINK: Thank you, Chairman

         12  Sanders, and Committee, for letting me testify

         13  today.

         14                 My name is Mary Spink and I'm

         15  speaking to you today in my capacity as the

         16  executive director of the Lower East Side People's

         17  Mutual Housing Association.

         18                 The subject I'm here to address today

         19  is the, I guess Initiative 247.

         20                 This proposed zone was designed and

         21  designated without the input and the support of the

         22  community it will supposedly serve. My association

         23  owns property and has commercial concerns in the

         24  proposed zone, as well as outside of it, but we were

         25  neither informed, nor asked for our input until
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          2  Councilwoman Lopez informed us and Councilman Gerson

          3  requested our presence at a meeting that was held

          4  Wednesday, August 14th, last night, at 6:30 p.m.

          5                 Since there was no public hearing or

          6  community outreach, most of the community affected

          7  by this proposal has no viable voice in this plan.

          8  On its face, this appears to be a good thing.

          9  Economic development for an area hurt by September

         10  11th and the economic downturn. But appearances are

         11  not always as they seem. This plan is flawed, for it

         12  does not address certain major issues.

         13                 The proposed zone would only benefit

         14  new and expanded businesses. What about the existing

         15  businesses that are struggling to survive? Should

         16  they be allowed to fail?

         17                 There is a huge parcel of vacant land

         18  within this zone called the Seward Park Urban

         19  Renewal Area. This parcel has been in turmoil for

         20  years, over its redevelopment plan.

         21                 When the area was originally cleared,

         22  the community was promised that the displaced

         23  low-income housing would be replaced. It makes sense

         24  to include commercial revitalization in that plan,

         25  but the empire zone does not address the subject of
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          2  housing at all.

          3                 Who will administer this plan? Who

          4  decides who receives the tax credits, the loans, et

          5  cetera? Will this be done by an arm's length agency

          6  that does not have any self-interest? It is a shame

          7  and a disgrace that a community is placed in the

          8  position where I find myself today, to be asked to

          9  choose between helping a portion of my community or

         10  none at all.

         11                 In good conscience, for the reasons

         12  I've stated, I find I must ask the Council to vote

         13  against the proposed empire zone as it stands.

         14                 At this point I've been sitting in

         15  the back since I wrote this and listening to

         16  everything that's been said and everything that's

         17  been discussed here, and I realize that there is a

         18  lot of quote/unquote democracy and action going on

         19  at this time, trying to amend and trying to change

         20  that. I applaud that on one hand, but I also want to

         21  say for the record that this is what should have

         22  happened two months ago, because we would have been

         23  able to design a wonderful plan if we all would have

         24  been asked to the table.

         25                 And I would like to end with whatever
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          2  my Councilperson, whatever is decided by the

          3  Council, if the plan is amended and my Councilperson

          4  agrees with it, then I would say vote for it. The

          5  way it stands now, no.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Thank you.

          8                 Call your next witness, please.

          9                 MS. REID: I'd like to call Jennifer

         10  Houlihan, of the Lower East Side BID.

         11                 After she testifies I'd like to call

         12  Shao-Chee Sim of the Asian American Federation, and

         13  then Margaret Hughes of the Good Old Lower East

         14  Side.

         15                 You can all come up now and testify

         16  in that order. And we're going to keep these to

         17  two-minute testimonies.

         18                 MS. REID: And we do have a clock.

         19                 MS. HOULIHAN: Good morning. My name

         20  is Jennifer Houlihan. I'm the Marketing Director of

         21  the Lower East Side Business Improvement District.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: A little louder,

         23  please.

         24                 MS. HOULIHAN: I am reading this

         25  testimony on behalf of Andrew Flamm, the Executive
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          2  Director of the Lower East Side BID.

          3                 Formed in 1992, the Lower East Side

          4  BID provides district beautification and promotion

          5  of businesses on the Lower East Side. Our Board of

          6  Directors consists of local merchants, property

          7  owners, elected officials, local residents and a

          8  member of Community Board Number 3.

          9                 The Lower East Side is home to over

         10  1,000 businesses, primarily family-owned and

         11  operated small retail businesses. Many of these

         12  businesses have operated on the Lower East Side for

         13  several generations and have been devastated by the

         14  dramatic fall-off and foot traffic following the

         15  tragic event for 9/11. In some cases business losses

         16  have been in excess of 40 percent.

         17                 Our commercial district, long

         18  renowned for clothing, home furnishings and ethnic

         19  foods, has recently seen an influx of fashion

         20  boutiques and dynamic cafes and clubs. The

         21  combination of these distinct types of businesses is

         22  further indication that the Lower East Side has

         23  among the most diverse merchant base in the City.

         24                 While several incentive programs

         25  target larger businesses and/or businesses in the
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          2  immediate World Trade Center vicinity, Chinatown,

          3  Lower East Side Empire Zone designation would

          4  encourage development in our deeply affected

          5  communities. We feel this designation would

          6  revitalize the area by encouraging investment in

          7  local facilities and the hiring of new staff by

          8  participating businesses.

          9                 With this designation the BID would

         10  have an additional tool at our disposal when

         11  attempting to recruit businesses to our shopping

         12  district. These tax credits and other financial

         13  incentives will also help the Lower East Side

         14  further develop emerging industries in our

         15  districts, such as fashion and specialty foods. One

         16  such example is Forward, a Fashion Design Incubator

         17  opened by the Lower East Side BID to help budding

         18  designers develop their own businesses.

         19                 It is clear that the Chinatown Lower

         20  East Side Empire Zone's designation would help our

         21  local economy by creating jobs and economic

         22  opportunities. I thank you for your consideration.

         23                 Thank you very much.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Thank you. Beat

         25  the clock.
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          2                 The next person.

          3                 MR. SIM: Good morning, Chairman

          4  Sanders. My name is Shao-Chee Sim, Director of

          5  Research at the Asian American Federation of New

          6  York. Thank you for the opportunity to testify today

          7  on the creation of a Chinatown/Lower East Side

          8  Empire Zone.

          9                 The Asian American Federation of New

         10  York is a non-profit organization that conducts

         11  policy research, advocacy, technical and management

         12  assistance and community grant-making. It has a

         13  membership of 36 community-based organizations. In

         14  the face of 9/1`1, the Federation has mobilized

         15  vital human, financial, and technical resources for

         16  those affected in the community. In particular, we

         17  established the Asian American Federation WTC Fund

         18  and the Relief, Recovery and Rebuilding Initiative

         19  to help victims and families in greatest need. This

         20  past April, we also published "Chinatown After

         21  September 11: An Economic Impact Study." A copy of

         22  the executive summary of the report is attached.

         23                 In light of the unprecedented level

         24  of economic devastation suffered by Chinatown

         25  businesses and workers, as documented in the
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          2  support, we fully support and strongly urge City

          3  Council members to support the creation of a

          4  Chinatown/Lower East Side Empire Zone. With its many

          5  potential tax credit incentives, we believe this

          6  project will have positive impact in the area by

          7  attracting new investment opportunities and creating

          8  job opportunities for the jobless and underemployed.

          9                 The following is a brief synopsis of

         10  the findings from our April report as well as

         11  preliminary findings from our most recent research

         12  on Chinatown businesses, workers and residents.

         13                 Among the highlights of our studies

         14  were:

         15                 Chinatown workers experienced an

         16  unprecedented level of unemployment and

         17  underemployment.

         18                 Based on our research, nearly three

         19  out of four Chinatown workers were temporarily

         20  dislocated in the two weeks after 9/11.

         21                 Almost a quarter of the labor force,

         22  over 7,000 of them, or about 23 percent of the

         23  population in Chinatown, were laid off in the three

         24  months after 9/11.

         25                 Workers across the multiple sectors
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          2  in Chinatown experienced substantial wage loss in

          3  the aftermath of 9/11.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Sir, if you'll

          5  take 20 more seconds and summarize.

          6                 MR. SIM: Okay.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Give me the

          8  gist.

          9                 MR. SIM: The gist is that according

         10  to our most recent research on Chinatown businesses

         11  surveyed and dislocated workers, Chinatown economy

         12  has not recovered, and workers and employees

         13  continue to suffer nearly one year after 9/11.

         14                 In this past April when we released

         15  the report, we called for the destination of

         16  Chinatown as a special economic zone. We are very

         17  pleased that now the City Administration, DBS and

         18  the City Council, have demonstrated a sincere

         19  commitment and desire in making the destination a

         20  reality.

         21                 We hope that this hearing will mark

         22  an important beginning in the public policy arena,

         23  to help revitalize Chinatown, Lower East Side

         24  communities, and thereby help restore the economy of

         25  the entire City.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Thank you very

          4  much.

          5                 Our next witness.

          6                 MS. HUGHES: Yes, good afternoon,

          7  Council Member Sanders.

          8                 My name is Margaret Hughes, I'm

          9  Executive Director of the Good Old Lower East Side,

         10  a tenant housing and advocacy group on the Lower

         11  East Side who also has formed a Lower East Side

         12  Merchants Association.

         13                 We've noted that obviously what's

         14  happened in Chinatown has also been replicated on

         15  the Lower East Side. We find that a lot of

         16  businesses are struggling, many of the businesses

         17  that were part of the Merchants Association closed.

         18  So, it is our recommendation that the boundaries of

         19  the proposed Empire Zone needs to be extended to

         20  these businesses north of Houston, since they were

         21  also tremendously impacted as part of the "frozen

         22  zone" following September 11th, which, as you

         23  remember, extended all the way to 14th Street.

         24                 The boundaries need to include the

         25  eastern most portion of Community Board 3, where
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          2  there is commercial space available that would

          3  benefit from the economic benefit.

          4                 Also, we're concerned about the

          5  Seward Park urban renewal area. We support and need

          6  low-income housing in the community and this

          7  commitment has been not fulfilled for 30 years. We

          8  hope that we do not lose that opportunity with this

          9  empire zone.

         10                 The fast tracking of the process is a

         11  great concern to us. It would have been good to have

         12  more communities support, and as Mary Spink

         13  suggested, it would have been good to have had that

         14  involvement prior to this hearing.

         15                 We had hoped to see these things

         16  taken into account with the empire zone.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 MS. REID: I'd like to call Teddy Lai.

         19  I will be calling a number of people at one time.

         20                 Milan Markovic from Cooper Square

         21  Committee; and Gregory Heller, from FDR Drive --

         22  Community Board 3, I'm sorry.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Even as these

         24  good people step forward, let me tell you what is

         25  happening in one sense. At 12:30, actually around
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          2  12:25 you will see this room fill up one more time,

          3  up here at least, we will put this to a vote at

          4  12:30. There will be a vote at 12:30.

          5                 Sir, you were going to speak. Good to

          6  see you.

          7                 MR. LAI: Thank you. Good morning

          8  Chair Sanders and Develop Committee (sic) members.

          9  My name is Teddy Lai, and I'm the Executive Director

         10  of Greater Blouse and Garment Association. It is my

         11  profound privilege for me to come forward and send

         12  the testimony to the City Council Economic

         13  Development Committee on the destination of empire

         14  zone in Chinatown Lower East Side.

         15                 Greater Blouse and Garment

         16  Association is a 69-year-old non-profit organization

         17  representing the garment factory in New York City.

         18  Our primary membership are located in Chinatown. Our

         19  fellow members and employees are providing jobs for

         20  tens of thousands of immigrants, especially minority

         21  women. They are currently in less than one square

         22  mile in Lower Manhattan, which create a convenient

         23  service link to Midtown garment district.

         24                 The garment factory in Chinatown are

         25  an integral part of community. Approximately 40
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          2  percent of garment workers reside in Chinatown and

          3  Lower Manhattan. There are many other small

          4  businesses in the area, including restaurant, banks,

          5  professional, grocery store and many others who

          6  provide goods and services to the workers and

          7  residents.

          8                 I know from my 25 years of personal

          9  experience serving the garment industry that an

         10  empire zone designation in Chinatown/Lower East Side

         11  will stabilize the ability of economic growth in our

         12  neighborhood and the surrounding community.

         13                 According to the New York State

         14  Department of Labor records:

         15                 In 1991 there were 4,067 garment

         16  factories registered in New York.

         17                 In 2001, 3,994 garment manufacturers

         18  were registered in the state.

         19                 But in June 2002, the manufacturers

         20  dropped to 3,065. From the DOL figure, it seemed

         21  that number of garment shops between 1991 and 2001

         22  only changed slightly, but the fact was in 1991

         23  there were over 500 factories located in Chinatown.

         24                 In the year of 2001, the number of

         25  factories went down to 246. From the recent
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          2  telephone poll we learned that the number of

          3  factories dropped to an alarming 182.

          4                 According to the February 2002 study

          5  from the Asian American Federation, the 246

          6  factories prior to September 11 were reduced to 216

          7  following the World Trade Center disaster.

          8                 In the end of June our Association

          9  conducted a telephone survey, we found the number of

         10  garment factories had further reduced to 182. Such a

         11  drastic offset sends a clear warning to us if such

         12  revenue decline rate continue and there's no

         13  assistance soon, the garment factories in Chinatown

         14  would surely reach a dangerous low and be eliminated

         15  completely from our community.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Ten more

         17  seconds, sir.

         18                 MR. LAI: I have to skip to my

         19  conclusion then.

         20                 Okay, in conclusion, I urge the City

         21  Council and Economic Development Committee members

         22  to support this initiative. It would surely

         23  revitalize Chinatown and the surrounding community

         24  on a multiple level. But supporting this project, we

         25  will build a strong ground, improve the investment,
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          2  which can encourage and support the already existing

          3  garment factory.

          4                 Furthermore, it would attract new

          5  firms to New York City and as a possibility will

          6  only help to rebuild Chinatown and Lower East Side,

          7  but it will also bring profit to the entire State of

          8  New York.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Thank you, sir.

         11                 Your testimony, sir.

         12                 MR. MARKOVIC: Yes, hello. My name is

         13  Milan Markovic. I'm speaking on behalf of Cooper

         14  Square Committee. We're a housing and tenants

         15  organization on the Lower East Side, actually on

         16  East 4th Street.

         17                 Cooper Square Committee supports the

         18  proposed Chinatown/Lower East Side Empire Zone in

         19  principle. That being said, we obviously share many

         20  of the concerns that have been expressed by our

         21  Councilperson Margarita Lopez and many other people

         22  you've heard from today.

         23                 We have many concerns, specifically

         24  regarding the geographic boundaries of the Empire

         25  Zone, the process by which it is being created, and
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          2  how it will be administered should the State approve

          3  the Department of Business Services application.

          4                 The public input leading up to this

          5  point has clearly been less than exemplary. Our

          6  organization and many other Lower East Side Housing

          7  and Community Development groups only heard about

          8  the empire zone proposal last week, after being

          9  alerted to it by the office of City Councilwoman

         10  Margarita Lopez.

         11                 We understand this is a complex

         12  issue, and that's why we cannot understand why

         13  organizations that understand the complex nature of

         14  our neighborhood have not been adequately consulted

         15  to this point.

         16                 With regard to the geographic

         17  boundaries, we've been informed that they can be

         18  modified by the Board governing the empire zone,

         19  assuming that is in fact approved by the State.

         20  However, we strongly urge the City modify the

         21  boundaries of the zone to include the northern part

         22  of the Cooper Square urban renewal area, which

         23  extends up to Fifth Street, between the Bowery and

         24  Second Avenue.

         25                 Given that the City of New York has
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          2  tried for 30 years to develop several acres of

          3  vacant land in the Cooper Square urban renewal area,

          4  will be a missed opportunity if it was excluded from

          5  the empire zone.

          6                 Now that the development of the site

          7  is eminent, including 150,000 square feet of retail

          8  space, it is imperative that the City not place one

          9  portion of the renewal area at a competitive

         10  disadvantage --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Thirty seconds,

         12  sir.

         13                 MR. MARKOVIC:-- In relation to the

         14  other portion of the renewal area.

         15                 We're also working with more than a

         16  dozen not-for-profit theaters, dance companies and

         17  visual arts organizations on East 4th Street, and we

         18  have the support of the Department of Cultural

         19  Affairs and HPD. It will greatly benefit our

         20  planning and fund-raising efforts, as well as

         21  promote policy initiatives adopted by the City, if

         22  the 4th Street block was included in the empire

         23  zone.

         24                 And, clearly, as has been addressed,

         25  Avenue C, D, B and A all need to be included in this
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          2  plan. It is completely unconscionable that the

          3  census figures have not been consulted for that

          4  area, since there is great poverty in that area.

          5                 And we are also very concerned, in

          6  particular --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Your last

          8  statement, sir.

          9                 MR. MARKOVIC: My last statement.

         10                 While we support the economic

         11  initiatives, we want to see particular kinds of

         12  businesses in Chinatown. It will not be acceptable

         13  if the only people that do come to Chinatown are

         14  upscale boutiques and bars. We need businesses that

         15  benefit the community, we need homes for the people

         16  who work in those businesses, and we need really

         17  rebuilding for all.

         18                 Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Thank you, sir.

         20                 MR. HELLER: Councilman Sanders, I'd

         21  like to thank you for this opportunity. My name is

         22  Gregory Heller. I'm here today in my capacity as the

         23  Chairperson of the Economic Development Committee of

         24  Community Board 3.

         25                 As you've heard testimony today, most
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          2  of this district falls within our community

          3  district, and I'd like to address three main points,

          4  and the rest is in my written submission.

          5                 Process. On the 9th of July, there

          6  was a letter written by the Department of Business

          7  Services. It was faxed at 3:45 p.m. on July 11th,

          8  and our RSVP was requested by the end of the day on

          9  July 11th for a meeting on July 15th.

         10                 I did not receive this letter until I

         11  returned to the office on July 29th after a summer

         12  recess.

         13                 We were unable, therefore, to

         14  comment, or even attend that July 15th which was

         15  called in such haste.

         16                 The process from the beginning, as

         17  you've heard, has been very quick, and we're very

         18  concerned about that, particularly given the fact

         19  that this is a community that is very active and has

         20  well developed institutions that have been engaged

         21  in planning processes before, and that the Mayor has

         22  also expressed his encouragement of the community

         23  planning process in the past.

         24                 The urban renewal area, as you've

         25  heard, is very important. If that site, which is one
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          2  of the largest developable vacant tracks of land on

          3  the island of Manhattan is developed for big box

          4  retail development, as some people have suggested,

          5  it would do irreparable damage to the smaller

          6  businesses in the neighborhood, and we cannot allow

          7  that to happen.

          8                 As you've heard, the community board

          9  has a long-standing position of supporting

         10  affordable housing on that site.

         11                 Quality of life. In Chinatown and on

         12  the Lower East Side we've had a tremendous influx of

         13  bars --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Please take ten

         15  more seconds, sir.

         16                 MR. HELLER: Community Board 3 is very

         17  concerned about the impact that the empire zone may

         18  have on the quality of life for the affected

         19  neighborhoods if the wrong types of businesses move

         20  in.

         21                 We would like to see businesses that

         22  are responsible, that employ diverse workforces and

         23  that are diverse in nature so that we can maintain

         24  the diverse fabric of our community.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 MS. REID: At this time I'd like to

          3  call Paul J. Q. Lee. Is he here? Is he still here?

          4  He left.

          5                 Okay, Valerio Orselli. Is Valerio

          6  Orselli here? Are you coming? Okay. Valerio. And

          7  Elizabeth Santcix, are you here? Okay.

          8                 MR. ORSELLI: Okay, ladies and

          9  gentlemen of the City Council and the Committee, my

         10  name is Valerio Orselli. I'm the Executive Director

         11  of the Cooper Square Mutual Housing Association, a

         12  housing development organization on the Lower East

         13  Side of Manhattan.

         14                 I'm here to speak against the item in

         15  question. While I fully support it in principle, I

         16  strongly oppose the way it's being implemented.

         17  Without repeating the arguments and points made by

         18  previous speakers, I wish to make the following

         19  points.

         20                 One, there's been an almost complete

         21  lack of community participation in putting together

         22  this proposal. Community-based organizations were

         23  never contacted or consulted by this City. Our

         24  political leadership was not invited to participate

         25  in a meaningful way until late in the process.
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          2                 Secondly, there's no provision, no

          3  encouragement, no reference in the plan to the

          4  development of affordable housing.

          5                 Given that the zone includes the last

          6  undeveloped site originally slated for affordable

          7  housing, the Seward Park Urban Renewal Area, this is

          8  totally unacceptable to our community, in fact, it

          9  is racist.

         10                 When you speak about creating this

         11  zone, you make reference, quite properly, to

         12  September 11, it would be ludicrous not to make

         13  reference to that. When you speak about taking out

         14  an area that was designated to develop affordable

         15  housing, without referencing the long history of

         16  racism and racist discrimination in efforts to block

         17  development of affordable housing in Seward Park,

         18  you'll be making the same mistake.

         19                 Besides, how can you have economic

         20  development without housing development? Where are

         21  the workers in these newly created jobs going to

         22  live? Are they to remain doubled up as they are now?

         23                 Third point: Why does the third zone

         24  exclude Loisaida, which is Avenue A, B, C and D,

         25  where 50 percent of our poor population resides?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Ten seconds,

          3  sir.

          4                 MR. ORSELLI: The basic point I wish

          5  to make is, the proposal is basically good, there's

          6  lots of good benefits, but as it is designed it is a

          7  trojan horse. It provides benefits for a segment of

          8  a community which needs it, but it also takes up an

          9  area that is supposed to be used for affordable

         10  housing and makes that commitment make long ago to

         11  our people who were displaced impossible. And until

         12  those issues are resolved, and don't count on the

         13  State legislation to do so, because the very same

         14  political forces that blocked affordable housing in

         15  Seward Park will block it at the state level.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Thank you very

         18  much, sir.

         19                 The next speaker.

         20                 MS. SANTCIX: Thank you for the

         21  opportunity to speak today.

         22                 My name is Elizabeth Santcix, and I

         23  am here in my capacity of President of the Board of

         24  the Lower East Side People's Federal Credit Union,

         25  which is the 16-year-old non-profit community
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          2  development financial institution serving over 4,000

          3  members who live or work on both sides of East

          4  Houston Street from 14th Street to the Brooklyn

          5  Bridge east of the Bowery.

          6                 I'm here today in haste, taking time

          7  away from my own small business, it is most

          8  important that the Council and our community be

          9  notified that the principle primary community

         10  development financial institution of the Lower East

         11  Side was not consulted on this matter, and only

         12  called yesterday for a briefing at Alan Gerson's

         13  Office with Mark Newhouse.

         14                 Economic development on the Lower

         15  East Side is what the Lower East Side People's

         16  Federal Credit Union does.

         17                 We have a lot to bring and a lot to

         18  offer as to what we feel our member businesses and

         19  residents need in economic development and how we

         20  can help and continue to provide the affordable

         21  financial services, credit counseling, technical

         22  assistance, to our members and the rest of our

         23  community.

         24                 So, I would like to take the

         25  opportunity, since I do not have the opportunity
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          2  prior to that to state our general concerns about

          3  our businesses in our economy, that any plan and

          4  every plan that we seek to see developed must

          5  support the existing struggling businesses who have

          6  been affected by 9/11, whether or not they are --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Ten more

          8  seconds, Ma'am.

          9                 MS. SANTCIX: That we would like to

         10  recommend that as soon as possible the boundaries

         11  reflect the general Lower East Side community, and

         12  ensure that all the community development

         13  organizations, the economic development financial

         14  organizations, fellow CDFI's and low funds are

         15  brought into this process as we move forward to

         16  develop this plan.

         17                 The Lower East Side People's Federal

         18  Credit Union looks forward to fully participating in

         19  the consensus building effort that we know is

         20  essential in order for a community to take full

         21  advantage of the economic development incentive set

         22  forth in an empire zone. Our financial organization

         23  will welcome the opportunity to forge ahead in the

         24  creation of our thriving and diverse community.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Thank you.

          3                 At this point we're going to take a

          4  five-minute recess and by then I will have round up

          5  the Committee.

          6                 Thank you very much.

          7                 (Recess taken.)

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: At this hearing

          9  there's three resolutions that we're voting on. I'm

         10  going to vote for the first two resolutions,

         11  Resolutions 405, 406 first. Those resolutions are to

         12  have the Democratic and Republican Conventions come

         13  to New York City.

         14                 I believe that you have all had the

         15  pleasure of reading it. Would you members have a

         16  vote.

         17                 MS. REID: Gioia.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: I vote yes to

         19  all.

         20                 MS. REID: Dilan.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Aye on all.

         22                 MS. REID: Sanders.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Yes on those

         24  two.

         25                 MS. REID: Council Member Clarke.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Aye on all.

          3                 MS. REID: Council Member Gerson.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Yes on all.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: The other issue

          6  is the issue of Chinatown. The issue of the

          7  Chinatown/Lower East Side economic development.

          8                 You have heard a lot of testimony, I

          9  do have a statement prepared, but I will give my

         10  statement at the end of it, because I want to keep

         11  what I can.

         12                 Start on that side.

         13                 MS. REID: Councilman Gioia.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Thank you.

         15  Thank you very much. And thank you, Mr. Chair, and

         16  thank you for your indulgence today. I have

         17  simultaneous hearings going on, as well as a report

         18  that my own Committee, which I chair, just released.

         19                 I'd like to thank all of the members

         20  of the community from Chinatown who were down here

         21  today, and I'm very pleased to vote yes on this

         22  because I think -- and I'm pleased to see some

         23  economic help coming to a clearly distressed area,

         24  and I hope you'll come back in future years with an

         25  absolutely robust economy that helps raise the rest
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          2  of the City with it as well. So, I proudly vote yes.

          3                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

          4                 MS. REID: Thank you.

          5                 Councilman Gerson.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Thank you, Mr.

          7  Chair. And I'd like to, I guess, be excused to

          8  explain my vote, and make a brief statement.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Absolutely, sir.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: I was

         11  relatively good throughout this hearing, relatively.

         12  Mr. Chair, I implore my colleagues to vote in favor

         13  of this resolution, to join me in doing so.

         14                 And let me just take a few moments to

         15  address some of the legitimate issues that have been

         16  raised.

         17                 To say that the procedure pursued by

         18  the State, by the Governor and by this

         19  Administration has been lacking would be an

         20  understatement. I also was not informed about this

         21  until, I don't know, it was 15 days or less. I have

         22  said repeatedly, this is not the way to run a

         23  government.

         24                 There was a lack of adequate

         25  consultation, and had there been the proper process
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          2  and full consultation with myself, my colleagues,

          3  the community and community boards, we would have

          4  avoided a lot of the problems that we see here

          5  today.

          6                 But I have learned that in government

          7  we have a balancing act, and it would be wrong to

          8  hurt a community which desperately needs the benefit

          9  of this zone because of the shortcomings of the

         10  process that was followed, especially when we in

         11  fact have the opportunities to create, to correct

         12  the shortcomings.

         13                 I want to just point out, there is

         14  enough distress all over the City to go around, but

         15  the core of this district is a core which

         16  experienced unique and tragic repercussions as a

         17  result of the attack of 9/11. And that includes, but

         18  is not limited to, the exodus of, and the

         19  curtailment of a lot of manufacturing from within

         20  this district.

         21                 It is important to note that what is

         22  unique is this is one of the few manufacturing

         23  centers in Lower Manhattan, indeed in all of the

         24  Borough of Manhattan that exists within the core of

         25  this district, and the suffering and the economic
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          2  distress is not parallel elsewhere, because if we

          3  don't do something, we are in danger of losing an

          4  entire sector.

          5                 In addition, all of the restaurants

          6  and all of the retail of Chinatown and Lower East

          7  Side and Little Italy and the other parts of this

          8  district have suffered more than their share, and

          9  it's important to note that this area has been

         10  omitted, or parts of these, significant parts of

         11  this empire zone have been omitted from some of the

         12  other benefit programs that are in place. So, in one

         13  part, this is rectifying that omission.

         14                 I just finally, Mr. Chair, want to

         15  report to you that over the past two nights, I have

         16  met with representatives of the different

         17  communities from throughout. The word I have

         18  received from the communities and the Latino

         19  community and Lower East Side, from Italy from

         20  Tribeca, from SoHo, which in addition to Chinatown

         21  are partially or wholly included, is that they need

         22  the benefit of this, and that we need to go forward

         23  at the same time as we need to expand and correct

         24  the boundaries.

         25                 I also received a commitment from the
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          2  designated administrator, AFE (phonetic), that they

          3  would allow the Council members to appoint an

          4  advisory committee, a strong advisory committee,

          5  which would be fully involved in the development of

          6  marketing strategies.

          7                 The concerns you heard testified

          8  about concerning affordable housing are absolutely

          9  legitimate concerns, and as I brought out earlier in

         10  my questioning of Commissioner Walsh, we have added

         11  language to assure that as part of the criteria of

         12  this empire zone, the need for affordable housing is

         13  recognized and respected and developed.

         14                 And I'll also add, you heard

         15  testimony earlier about concerns for attracting the

         16  kind of businesses that disrupt neighborhoods, loud

         17  and rowdy bars and nightclubs and underneath floors

         18  where people reside, I have also raised that and

         19  received the assurance, and it's in writing, that

         20  the strategy would be developed so we don't attract

         21  disruptive businesses, or we try to avoid that.

         22                 This is not perfect, but this is a

         23  desperately needed step, which we need to take at

         24  the same time as we need to outreach and include all

         25  of the communities in distress.
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          2                 I will work to accomplish that, and

          3  I'm sure the Council will support me and we will

          4  work together to accomplish that. You already heard

          5  a definitive commitment to correct some of the

          6  boundaries, specifically with specific lines which I

          7  referenced earlier. That is just the beginning.

          8                 Let us take a step forward now and

          9  let us follow it up with the additional steps that

         10  we need to take.

         11                 Mr. Chair, I vote yes, and I urge all

         12  my colleagues to join me in doing so.

         13                 MS. REID: I'd like to call Council

         14  Member Clarke.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you.

         16                 Mr. Chair, may I be excused to

         17  explain my vote.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Absolutely.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: I was a bit

         20  distressed today about the need to establish this

         21  empire zone, more so to the process by which we've

         22  been placed. This is not the first time, in my

         23  experience, in the eight months that I've been here,

         24  that we've been forced to make very crucial

         25  decisions without proper notification, without the
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          2  courtesy, the respect of the type of dialogue that

          3  is required for very critical issues that impact on

          4  our communities. I'm troubled by that, and I really

          5  want to use this opportunity to urge the

          6  Administration to, you know, to create an

          7  environment here where we feel that we're working in

          8  partnership for the greater good of the City of New

          9  York.

         10                 There is no doubt that this empire

         11  zone -- I keep saying empowerment zone -- this

         12  empire zone is very much needed. What is in doubt,

         13  in my mind, is whether in fact it will serve to

         14  create the environment in Lower Manhattan that is

         15  truly needed to uplift to provide the economic

         16  stimulus and the job creation that will empower all

         17  of the people of the area that need to have this

         18  type of response and this type of relief.

         19                 However, when you're dealing with

         20  economic development, timing is everything, and I

         21  think I've been giving enough assurances through the

         22  Chair, through the statement of the Commissioner,

         23  through my colleague Alan Gerson, that there will be

         24  vigilance where this matter is concerned, and I

         25  think at the bottom of it that's what concerns us
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          2  all, that we have an opportunity to hold people's

          3  feet to the fire, and that we have an opportunity to

          4  see this zone grow and address the issues and

          5  concerns of the residents who have been so adversely

          6  impacted, of the businesses that have been so

          7  adversely impacted, and that we can also bring the

          8  power of the City of New York through its economic

          9  development tools to address the impropriety that

         10  currently exists. I hope that we do not see this

         11  empire zone as a panacea. It in and of itself will

         12  not yield what is truly needed to uplift this area,

         13  however, it is a tool in the right direction, and,

         14  so, I vote aye.

         15                 MS. REID: Council Member Oddo.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Yes.

         17                 MR. REID: Council Member Dilan.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Mr. Chair, may

         19  I be excused to explain my vote?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: Absolutely, sir.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Initially when

         22  I walked in I did have some trouble with this bill,

         23  for the same reasons that Council Member Clarke did,

         24  and that was because of the process, but I think

         25  that the benefits of this zone, you know, far
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          2  outweigh the negative impacts that have happened as

          3  it relates to process.

          4                 I'm pleased to see, one, that this

          5  will go to assist Lower Manhattan, and I'm pleased

          6  to see that this will also go to improve the

          7  manufacturing sector, and to that I vote aye.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SANDERS: The question, of

          9  course, has arisen as to why a normally eight-month

         10  process became two months in this case. Some may say

         11  that it had to do with the Governor's re-election. I

         12  would never make such a statement. I would never say

         13  that something as worthy and as necessary as this

         14  has been made into something for someone to be

         15  re-elected when there are lives and people's

         16  families at stake here.

         17                 The question becomes what are we to

         18  do with a very imperfect bill. You have to weigh

         19  that against making sure that we do not hurt the

         20  people of the Lower East Side and Chinatown at a

         21  critical time in their rebirth.

         22                 I have the Commissioner's word on

         23  some things. Now, that may not mean much to many

         24  different people, but my word means something, and

         25  I've given my word to my colleagues up here that
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          2  we're going to do the right thing by all communities

          3  in New York City.

          4                 I will take it as a personal insult

          5  if every movement is not made, every logical and

          6  well-meaning movement is not made by this

          7  Commissioner, to include all of the communities of

          8  New York City.

          9                 This is an imperfect bill, there are

         10  many things that need to be done here. I might -- it

         11  might be useful in a perfect world, if we had eight

         12  months to make sure that the public were involved as

         13  it should be, if we had eight months to make sure

         14  that the lines were drawn at the level that we

         15  should - we don't even have 15 minutes for this

         16  hearing any further, because we have a Stated that's

         17  going to begin soon.

         18                 We have an imperfect world, the only

         19  thing we can do with it is to struggle, and I

         20  encourage and implore everyone in this room to stay

         21  involved in the process, and I want to make sure

         22  that that's possible by voting yes on this issue.

         23                 The vote I believe was six in the

         24  affirmative, none in the negative. Therefore, this

         25  resolution will leave committee and go to the larger
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          2  Stated Meeting which will take place around 1:30

          3  this afternoon, and these questions will come up.

          4                 Your Councilperson does have the

          5  right to speak on this issue. I would encourage you

          6  to speak to your Councilperson if you feel that your

          7  Councilperson needs to speak in the affirmative or

          8  in the negative for the larger Stated Meeting.

          9                 I will keep this vote open for

         10  Council Member Recchia, who was here earlier.

         11                 My friends, without further ado, I

         12  want to thank everyone for their long discipline of

         13  being here, your patience, and I encourage you to

         14  stay there.

         15                 I want to give a special thanks to

         16  Council Member Lopez and Gerson who have been

         17  fighting for these communities for as long as I know

         18  of. They have really put their all into it. Thank

         19  you very much. This hearing is now closed.

         20                 (Hearing concluded at 12:35 p.m.)

         21
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